
 

 High Peak Borough Council 

 
 

 
THE EXECUTIVE - INDIVIDUAL EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 

Date: 
 

Friday, 10 February 2023 

 

 

PART 1 

1. Request for further support towards New Mills Tennis Club Project from the Move 
More Capital Fund (Pages 3 - 8) 

 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



  

 
HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

The Executive - Individual Executive Decisions 
 

10th March 2023 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Request for further support towards New 
Mills Tennis Club Project from the Move 

More Capital Fund 
 
EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: 

 
Councillor Damien Greenhalgh- Deputy 

Leader & Executive Councillor for 
Regeneration, Tourism and Leisure 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Sally Curley – Service Development Officer 

 

WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 

New Mills West 

 

 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To seek approval to allocate a further £3,900 from the Move More Capital Fund to 
New Mills Tennis Club to provide the remaining shortfall of £5,400 funding needed 

to deliver their court refurbishment project.  

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the requested further contribution of £3,900 from the Move More Capital 

Fund is approved as the Council’s contribution to deliver the court refurbishment 
project on the basis that all other funds have been secured by the Tennis Club. 

 

2.2 That the total contribution to New Mills Tennis Club from the Council’s Move More 
Capital Fund of £5,400 is approved, which includes the previously approved 

contribution of £1,500. 
 

3. Executive Summary 

 

3.1 New Mills Bowls, Cricket and Tennis Club is a combined amateur sports club and 
the tennis element is the only such facility for this sport in New Mills. It has 3 all-
weather tarmac courts and offers team tennis, social tennis and coaching for both 

juniors and adults. It is very popular having a large membership which they are 

keen to expand. 
 

3.2 New Mills Tennis Club has very much been part of the Move More Place Work in 

New Mills and as a result have started to develop initiatives in line with community 
needs which includes a weekly Walking Tennis session with the support of the 

Leisure Centre.  

 
3.3 The Club has also developed strong links with New Mills Youth Matters CIC, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 1



  

securing funding from the LTA SERVES programme to run weekly coaching 
sessions with targeted young people who would not necessarily have the 

opportunity to play tennis or join a Club. 
 

3.4 There are three all-weather tarmac courts at the facility, including fencing and 

infrastructure, which were last resurfaced in 1998. The Club has identified that the 
courts are detoriating significiantly and in order to expand membership and 

activities, in line with the Move More development work and especially with 

groups who have access needs, the refurbishment of the courts is essential.  
 

3.5 The Club has tendered for the work and the cost for the refurbishment of the 3 

courts with associated fencing and access improvements is £42,400. To date the 

Club has secured £17,000 from local fundraising and community activities. At the 

end of last year the Club submitted an application to Derbyshire County Council 
Community Grant Scheme and were successfully awarded £20,000 towards the 

project.  Therefore the shortfall to enable full delivery of the project in Spring is 
£5,400.  

 

3.6 In June 2021 an IED report to provide £1,500 towards this resurfacing project at 
the Tennis Club was approved by the Execuitve Councillor, on the proviso that the 

Club secured the remaining funds needed to complete the project. Since that 

approval the club have been raising further funds as outlined in section 3.5 above.  
Unfortunately, due to the rise in cost of materials since 2021 the Club has had to 

revisit their original quotes which have now increased meaning the shortfall 
required has also increased.  

 

3.7 The approved £1,500 has not yet been transferred to the Tennis Club and they 
are now looking to increase this contribution by £3,900 to enable them to find the 

shortfall of £5,400 and fully complete the project in Spring in line with the new 

costings for the work. If the shortfall cannot be found by the club in the near future 
there is a risk that costs will again increase which will impact on the shortfall 

needed. 

 

3.8 The Council’s current Move More Capital Fund includes the budget earmarked 

towards outdoor sports facilities projects – if approved the contribution will be 
met from this allocation. 

 

3.9 This project is integral to the delivery of the Council’s new Move More High 
Peak Strategy, supporting communities and clubs to be more active. It 

demonstrates a clear link to place based working with strategic partners, a 
number of whom are already fully involved. It also focuses on maximising 

physical activity and sporting opportunities using a key outdoor recreational 
space which is also linked to cricket and bowls. 

 

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 This report relates to Aim 1: Supporting our communities to create a healthier, 
safer, cleaner High Peak through the provision of high quality leisure facilities both 

in formal leisure centres and swimming pools and out in our communities.  This 

project will enhance an important community leisure facilty in New Mills, which will 
not only enable the Club to maintain the existing levels of involvement and 

physical activity on offer, but also to enhance and expand participation leading to 

Page 4



  

healthier lifestyles. It clearly integrates communities and sports clubs into the 
delivery of the new Move More High Peak Strategy objectives, and will continue to 

do so as the strategy is implemented.   
 

4.2 It also links to Aim 4: Protect and improve the environment. All the recreational 
facilities off Church Road in New Mills are important spaces within the town which 

contribute to ehancing the environment whilst providing opportunities for the 
community to be active and therefore should be protected and enhanced.   

 

 
5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 1 - To allocate a further £3,900 from the Move More Cpaital Fund to provide the 
shortfall of £5,400 to enable New Mills Tennis Club to fully deliver their re-

surfacing project this Spring.  This will ensure the Club can continue to provide 
high quality relational facilities for the local community (recommended). 

 

5.2 2 - To do nothing – This will place the project in jeopardy of not progressing as it 
will leave a funding shortfall for the Club, which by the time they explore 

alternative options, may well have increased again due to the continued rising 

costs of meterials (not recommended). 
 

 
6. Implications 

 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Improvements to this community facility will greatly increase its quality 
and use within New Mills, being the only tennis courts available for 

use in the town. The enhanced courts will create a safe and 
welcoming environment. The project is being driven and led by the 

local community who already have a firm sense of ownership and 

respect for the tennis club.  Increased usage of these tennis courts, 
along with engaging different sectors of the community will also help 

deter any anti-social behaviour. The Club is already working with 

Youth Matters CIC to engage with young people who would not 
necessarily partake in or have the opportunity to try out tennis 

activities. 

 
 

6.2 Workforce 

 
Through the funding secured by the club from the LTA for the young 

people engagement, this has created opportunies for local tennis 

coaches to be employed to deliver the sessions.  

 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
A full Equality Impact Assessment has been completed for the project.  

 
 

Page 5



  

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 
As detailed within the report.  
If approved, the Council’s contribution of £5,400 will be met from the 

Move More Capital Fund and includes the previously approved £1,500 

and the additional £3,900.  

 

 
6.5 Legal 

 
In addition to general powers of competence, the Council is 
specifically empowered to contribute by way of grant or loan towards 

the expenses incurred, or to be incurred by any voluntary organisation 

in providing any recreational facilities. Any grant funds should be 
released conditionally upon the community organisation being able to 

demonstrate its ability to fund and deliver the entire development.  

 
 

6.6 Climate Change 

 
The improvement project at New Mills Tennis Club will benefit and 

ehance an important space within the town. As this is the only tennis 
facility in New Mills (with no public courts) the project will ensure that 

individuals or groups can partake in physical activity within their local 

area, thus reducing car use and encouraging walking and cycling to 
the facility.  

 

 
6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
Consultation has already been undertaken locally by the tennis club in 
terms of existing members and the wider community. This 

demonstrated a community need for the club to develop new 

initiatives which can only be progressed with a good quality 
accessible facility. 

 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
New Mills Tennis Club already have responsibility for the facility, 
including insurance and will undertake onsite risk assessments for the 

protection of their members and other users. The contribution 

requested from the Council will allow full delivery of the project in 
Spring. Without this the risk of the costs increasing and the club 

needing to find more funds, also increases. 

 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 

Page 6



  

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 

 
 

Sally Curley 

Sally.Curley@highpeak.gov.uk 

 

 
7. Detail 

 

7.1 New Mills Bowls, Cricket and Tennis Club is a combined amateur sports club and 
the tennis element is the only such facility for this sport in New Mills. It has 3 all-

weather tarmac courts and offers team tennis, social tennis and coaching for both 

juniors and adults. It is very popular having a large membership which they Club 
is keen to expand. 

 
7.2 New Mills Tennis Club has very much been part of the Move More Place Work in 

New Mills and as a result have established a weekly Walking Tennis session with 

the support of the Leisure Centre. 
 

7.3 The Club has also developed strong links with New Mills Youth Matters CIC, 

securing funding from the LTA SERVES programme to run weekly coaching 
sessions with targeted young people who would not necessarily have the 

opportunity to play tennis or join a club. 

 
7.4 There are three all-weather tarmac courts at the facility, including fencing and 

infrastructure, which were last resurfaced in 1998. The Club has identified that the 
courts are detoriating significiantly and in order to expand membership and 

activities, in line with the Move More development work and especially with 

groups who have access needs, the refurbishment of the courts is essential. 
 

7.5 The club have tendered for the work and the cost for the refurbishment of the 3 

courts with associated fencing and access improvements is £42,400. To date the 
club has secured £17,000 from local fundraising and community activities. At the 

end of last year the club submitted an application to Derbyshire County Council 
Community Grant Scheme and were successfully awarded £20,000 towards the 

project.  Therefore the shortfall to enable full delivery of the project in Spring is 

£5,400. 
 

7.6 In June 2021 a report to provide £1,500 towards this resurfacing project at the 
Tennis Club was approved, on the proviso that the Club secured the remaining 

funds needed to complete the project. Since that approval the Club has been 

raising further funds as outlined in section 3.5 above.  Unfortunately, due to the 
raise in cost of materials since 2021 the Club has had to revisit their original 

quotes which have now increased meaning the shortfall required has also 

increased. 
 

7.7 The approved £1,500 has not yet been transferred to the Tennis Club and they 
are now looking to increase this contribution by £3,900 to enable them to find the 

shortfall of £5,400 and fully complete the project in Spring in line with the new 

costings for the work. If the shortfall cannot be found by the Club in the near future 
there is a risk that costs will again increase which will impact on the shortfall 

needed. 

 

Page 7



  

7.8 The Council’s current Move More Capital Fund includes the budget earmarked 
towards outdoor sports facilities projects – if approved the contribution will be 
met from this allocation. 

 
7.9 The project is integral to the delivery of the Council’s new Move More High 

Peak Strategy, supporting communities and clubs to be more active. It 
demonstrates a clear link to place based working with strategic partners, a 
number of whom are already fully involved. It also focuses on maximising 

physical activity and sporting opportunities using a key outdoor recreational 
space which is also linked to cricket and bowls. On this basis it is 

recommended that the further funding is provided by the Council. 
 

 
 

Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Request for further support towards New Mills Tennis Club Project from the Move More Capital Fund

